[image: image1.emf] 


STATE OF NEW YORK

DEPARTMENT OF TAXATION AND FINANCE

Office of Budget & Management Analysis

Bureau of Fiscal Services
Building 9, Room 234

W.A. Harriman Campus

Albany, NY  12227
Patricia Mitchell, Chief Financial Officer

Eric Mostert, Assistant Director, Budget & Accounting Services

Catherine Golden, Assistant Director, Procurement Services








Response to Bidder Questions and Amendment 2 to Request for Proposal 10-25
Debit Card Services
March 4, 2011
To All Potential Bidders:

Attached is the Department’s response to bidder questions.  In addition, the Department is amending RFP 10-25, Debit Card Services Section III., K. Proposal Security/Freedom of Information Law, to include a response requirement for Exemption from Disclosure. 
All other requirements and conditions remain as indicated in the RFP. 

	#
	RFP Section
	RFP Page #
	Question
	Answer

	1
	Introduction, A.
	9
	Can DTF clarify if recipients have the potential to receive multiple PIT refund payments?  For instance, for errors, corrections
	Yes, a taxpayer may receive multiple PIT refunds in any given Processing Year.  Multiple refunds could result from amended/ prior year returns, refundable tax credit forms filed separately from the primary return and protest resolutions.   However, refunds based on prior year returns will not be issued in the first year of this debit card program, but may be thereafter.  If multiple refunds are paid via a debit card, the Cardholder would be issued a new debit card for each refund payment. 

	2
	Functional Requirement 1.15
	46
	Per our prior question on this Requirement, automatically re-issuing new debit cards after the expiration date for account balances of $20 or more will directly and materially impact the State’s costs.  If this requirement remains, each bidder will need to estimate the card reissue volume associated with this requirement.   To assist, would DTF please provide us with the following information:

· Under the current program, what is the stale-date period associated with tax refund checks?

· Annually, what percentage of checks is stopped due to stale date?  How many of these checks are for amounts greater than $20?

· Annually, what percentage of checks for amounts over $20 is not cashed within 12 months of the date of issue?


	The Department does not have a specified designated ‘stale date’ period associated with PIT refund checks.  Rather, during the following Processing Year, letters are sent to taxpayers with un-cashed checks.  If these taxpayers do not subsequently cash the check or request a new check, the monies are turned over to the OSC Abandoned Property Fund.  Please note, Exhibit A includes the total number of PIT refund drafts and the number of un-cashed checks that is turned over to the OSC Abandoned Property Fund.  This data is the closest information we can provide for the percentage of checks stopped due to a ‘stale date’ policy:
Processing Year 2009 Checks:   3,818,984
Un-cashed Checks:   63,081
Percentage of Un-Cashed Checks:   1.65%
We cannot respond to the other requests for information because we have no data for check amounts over $20.  

	3
	Section I, Introduction, C. Procurement Strategy
	10
	If the State does not mandate electronic disbursement of tax refunds, is it considering methods whereby taxpayer adoption of either direct deposit or card would be encouraged? Or conversely, is the State considering options whereby checks would be discouraged with fees or time delays?  If so, would DTF please describe these plans and the associated timing?
	The Department has no information regarding refund payment type mandate or incentive programs.   However, the Department continues to state in various public venues that direct deposit is the easiest and fastest way to get a refund.

	4
	General Question
	
	Is it acceptable for bidders to use NYS DTF’s logo for marketing material samples?
	Bidders may submit marketing samples with the NYS DTF logo with their RFP response.
Please note that the design of marketing documents and the use of the NYS DTF logo are issues that will be jointly developed in the program implementation period after approval of the Contract.

	5
	General Question
	
	Can NYS please provide us with information regarding when checks where cashed in 2010.  For example, how many refund checks were cashed within one month of the date of issue?  Two months?  Three months?  Four months, etc.
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Days Lapsed Between

Issue Date and Check Clear Date

Count

% to Total

Less Than or Equal to 10 days

2,036,361

        

 

62%

11 to 20 days

708,321

            

 

22%

21 - 30 days

208,975

            

 

6%

Greater than 30 days

316,728

            

 

10%

Total Checks Cleared

3,270,385

        

 

100%


Please note that the total cashed check counts provided in the response to this question are about 200,000 less than the PY 2010 drafts in Exhibit A of the RFP.  This is due to PY 2010 issued checks that have not yet been cashed, lost and stolen checks that have not yet been reported and the remaining uncashed checks that will be eventually turned over to the Abandoned Property Fund.

	6
	C. Negotiable Topics, Contract Conditions, 

Item 1. Licensed Software, Custom Software, and Documentation by the Department
	90
	Item 1. Licensed Software

Our solution is web-based and used by many of our clients.  Therefore, would the State consider removing the language in Section 1.  Licensed Software, Custom Software, and Documentation by the Department that mentions NYS has the license to copy and distribute the software in subsections (a)(i) and (ii) as there is nothing to copy or distribute.

RFP Section:

1. Licensed Software, Custom Software, and Documentation by the Department

(a) Licensed Software and Licensed Documentation

i. If the Contractor is the licensee or sub-licensee of third-party licensed software that the Department will use in connection with the Services performed under the Agreement, then the Contractor warrants that:  

1. such license or sub-license has not expired; and,

2. such license or sub-license allows the Department to use, execute, copy, display and distribute such software and documentation, for at least as long as the Contractor performs the services under the Agreement.  

ii. The Contractor grants the Department (including an agent, Contractor or outsourcer of the Department), without compensation, a perpetual, non-exclusive license to use, execute, copy, display and distribute for the Department’s tax administration purposes, object code to pre-existing software created by the Contractor which is deemed necessary for the performance of the services covered by the Agreement.  

(b) Custom Software

Upon final payment therefore, the Department shall own and possess all rights, title and interest in and to custom software created by the Contractor specifically for the Department under the Agreement, including, without limitation, all ownership and intellectual property rights.  
	As provided in both Section V - Evaluation Process and Section XI - Contract Conditions, bidders are invited to propose alternative language to the Negotiable Topics contained in Section XI.  The Department does not comment on any suggested alternative language during the Question and Answer period.  In the event a Bidder provides specific alternative language to the Negotiable Topics, such alternative language will be scored utilizing a scaled rating whereby an affirmation of the Departments standard receives the highest rating and any substantial deviation from a standard receives a lower rating.  Accordingly, there are no restrictions on Bidders submitting any Negotiable Topic alternative language in their response; with the understanding that alternative language submissions not deemed advantageous to the State will receive a lower score.  In any case, alternative language included in the RFP will be negotiated with the winning Bidder.   


	7
	C. Negotiable Topics, Contract Conditions, 

Item 6. Most Favorable Terms
	92
	Item 6. Most Favorable Terms

The bank does not have the technical capability to monitor the pricing for individual items and/or services for all of its clients. We have proposed an extremely attractive price to NYS DTF for its banking services. Each calendar year we will review our prices and determine if they are consistent with the then current market pricing for similar government clients in the market. If specific prices are to be reduced, we will notify NYS DTF and make the pricing adjustments accordingly as of the time when our review was undertaken. This is a practice we have undertaken with our key clients for a number of years. Is this an acceptable alternate approach to Item 6. Most Favorable Terms?
RFP Section:

6. Most Favorable Terms

The Contractor agrees that all fees, terms, warranties and benefits provided and offered by the Contractor are substantially similar to the best equivalent terms being offered by the Contractor to any present governmental agency for services of similar size, scope and complexity.  If during the term of the Agreement, the Contractor enters into an arrangement with any other similar government customer, including New York State Department of Taxation and Finance, providing greater benefits or more favorable terms for services of similar size, scope and complexity as the services provided the Department pursuant to the Agreement, then the Agreement shall thereupon be deemed amended to provide the same to the Department.  


	As provided in both Section V - Evaluation Process and Section XI - Contract Conditions, bidders are invited to propose alternative language to the Negotiable Topics contained in Section XI.  The Department does not comment on any suggested alternative language during the Question and Answer period.  In the event a Bidder provides specific alternative language to the Negotiable Topics, such alternative language will be scored utilizing a scaled rating whereby an affirmation of the Departments standard receives the highest rating and any substantial deviation from a standard receives a lower rating.  Accordingly, there are no restrictions on Bidders submitting any Negotiable Topic alternative language in their response; with the understanding that alternative language submissions not deemed advantageous to the State will receive a lower score. In any case, alternative language included in the RFP will be negotiated with the winning Bidder.   


	8
	C. Negotiable Topics, Contract Conditions, Item 7. Staff Management.
	92
	Item 7. Staff Management

It is our intent that no changes to key team members, subcontractors or agents will be made during the term of this contract. If a key team member, subcontractor or agent needs to be changed for any reason, we will then work diligently to find a suitable replacement. Any personnel changes, including promotional decisions, must remain under the Bank’s control. We will of course listen and work diligently to ensure NYS DTF is satisfied with all assigned personnel.  If DTF has any concerns regarding a Bank associate working on the contract, the Client Manager will address any concerns. Is this modification to Item 7. Staff Management acceptable to NYS?
	 As provided in both Section V - Evaluation Process and Section XI - Contract Conditions, bidders are invited to propose alternative language to the Negotiable Topics contained in Section XI.  The Department does not comment on any suggested alternative language during the Question and Answer period.  In the event a Bidder provides specific alternative language to the Negotiable Topics, such alternative language will be scored utilizing a scaled rating whereby an affirmation of the Departments standard receives the highest rating and any substantial deviation from a standard receives a lower rating.  Accordingly, there are no restrictions on Bidders submitting any Negotiable Topic alternative language in their response; with the understanding that alternative language submissions not deemed advantageous to the State will receive a lower score. In any case, alternative language included in the RFP will be negotiated with the winning Bidder.   


	9
	 C. Negotiable Topics, Contract Conditions, 

Item 9. Personnel Changes by Contractor
	92 & 93
	Item 9. Personnel Changes by Contractor

Paragraph (a) requires notification to the State of planned personnel changes.  Paragraph (b) states the Department can pursue dispute resolution if they believe our planned personnel change will cause degradation of the services.  While the Bank can agree to sub-section (a) of this provision, the bank would propose to delete sub-section (b) from any resulting contract between NYS DTF and the bank. There are circumstances where the Bank has little or no control over an employee who may choose to leave the bank's employment or decides to change jobs. We can agree to give written notice, should a key team member, subcontractor or agent need to be changed for any reason. Any personnel changes, including promotional decisions, must remain under the bank’s control and the dispute resolution process could result in personnel changes which are outside of the bank’s control. For any personnel changes, we will then work diligently to find a suitable replacement. Is this slight modification to Item 9. Personnel Changes by Contractor acceptable to NYS DTF?
	 As provided in both Section V - Evaluation Process and Section XI - Contract Conditions, bidders are invited to propose alternative language to the Negotiable Topics contained in Section XI.  The Department does not comment on any suggested alternative language during the Question and Answer period.  In the event a Bidder provides specific alternative language to the Negotiable Topics, such alternative language will be scored utilizing a scaled rating whereby an affirmation of the Departments standard receives the highest rating and any substantial deviation from a standard receives a lower rating.  Accordingly, there are no restrictions on Bidders submitting any Negotiable Topic alternative language in their response; with the understanding that alternative language submissions not deemed advantageous to the State will receive a lower score. In any case, alternative language included in the RFP will be negotiated with the winning Bidder.   


	10
	C. Negotiable Topics, Contract Conditions, 

Item 10. Permission to Investigate 
	93
	Item 10. Permission to Investigate

We would propose, in any resultant contract between the bank and NYS DTF, to only include the first sentence of subsection (a) of this provision which states we will cooperate with the Department in an investigation to the extent permitted by law.  In accordance with applicable regulations, we comply with regulatory agencies in response to and cooperation with reviews and investigations. We confine access to our facilities and records by regulatory agencies in order to ensure privacy and work to answer any questions they may have. All requests for inspection would be handled on a case by case basis and would be addressed to the Client Manager. Is this proposed slight modification/clarification acceptable to NYS DTF?
	 As provided in both Section V - Evaluation Process and Section XI - Contract Conditions, bidders are invited to propose alternative language to the Negotiable Topics contained in Section XI.  The Department does not comment on any suggested alternative language during the Question and Answer period.  In the event a Bidder provides specific alternative language to the Negotiable Topics, such alternative language will be scored utilizing a scaled rating whereby an affirmation of the Departments standard receives the highest rating and any substantial deviation from a standard receives a lower rating.  Accordingly, there are no restrictions on Bidders submitting any Negotiable Topic alternative language in their response; with the understanding that alternative language submissions not deemed advantageous to the State will receive a lower score. In any case, alternative language included in the RFP will be negotiated with the winning Bidder.   


	11
	C. Negotiable Topics, Contract Conditions, 

Item 14. Information Security Breach and Notification Law
	95
	Item 14. Information Security Breach and Notification Law

· The provision states in the event of a breach of security we will immediately commence an investigation, “in cooperation with the Department”, to determine the scope, etc.  We would not normally allow an outside entity (even a state) to direct our investigation.  Would you please clarify the meaning/intent of the level of “cooperation” required by the state?
· The provision states we are responsible for notifying non-NY state residents whose information is reasonably believed to have been exposed.  We see nothing in the statute cited that discusses notice to non-NY residents and we would normally make notifications as required by the states whose customers were affected.  Does the State agree that notice made to non-NY state residents would be in accordance with the applicable law of the state of the affected resident?
	As provided in both Section V - Evaluation Process and Section XI - Contract Conditions, bidders are invited to propose alternative language to the Negotiable Topics contained in Section XI.  The Department does not comment on any suggested alternative language during the Question and Answer period.  In the event a Bidder provides specific alternative language to the Negotiable Topics, such alternative language will be scored utilizing a scaled rating whereby an affirmation of the Departments standard receives the highest rating and any substantial deviation from a standard receives a lower rating.  Accordingly, there are no restrictions on Bidders submitting any Negotiable Topic alternative language in their response; with the understanding that alternative language submissions not deemed advantageous to the State will receive a lower score. In any case, alternative language included in the RFP will be negotiated with the winning Bidder.   


	12
	PART B - INVARIABLE CONTRACT CONDITION, Item 34. Subcontractors 
	89
	Item 34. Subcontractors

This provision states that the Department reserves the right to review and approve subcontracts.  Our agreements with our subcontractors are considered proprietary and we would need to obtain prior written approval from a subcontractor to release a contract for the Department’s review.  

In any event, we can provide DTF with certain sections of standard language in our subcontracts as well as address specific questions you may have.   Is this approach acceptable?
	Section XI PART B – Invariable Contract Conditions are not subject to negotiation.   Specifically, the Department retains the right to review all agreements with Subcontractors made by the Prime Contractor.  We do note that a Bidder does not have to provide such agreements with their RFP response.  Rather, the Department would request Subcontractor agreements after a Contract has been awarded; which should provide sufficient time for a Prime Contractor to make the necessary arrangements with their Subcontractors to provide them.


K. Proposal Security/Freedom of Information Law

During the evaluation process, each Bidder’s proposal will be held in strict confidence by Department staff assigned to proposal evaluation committees, and will not be disclosed except to the Office of the Attorney General and the Office of the State Comptroller as may be necessary to obtain the approvals of those agencies for the final contract.  

Public inspection of the bids is regulated by the Freedom of Information Law (Article 6 of the New York State Public Officers Law).  The bids are presumptively available for public inspection.  The Freedom of Information Law provides for exemption from disclosure for trade secrets or information the disclosure of which would cause injury to the competitive position of commercial enterprises.  The Freedom of Information Law provides that agencies may deny access to records or portions thereof that …..”are trade secrets or submitted to an agency by a commercial enterprise or derived from information obtained from a commercial enterprise and which, if disclosed, would cause substantial injury to the competitive position of the subject enterprise…” (Public Officers Law §87.2(d)).  This exception would be effective both during and after the evaluation process.

Where a Freedom of Information request is made for trade secret or other information which, if disclosed, may cause substantial injury to the competitive position of the Bidder, the Bidder must explain with particularity why the designated portion of the bid meets the statutory criteria for exemption from disclosure.

The provisions of the Freedom of Information Law will also govern the confidentiality of any and all products or services supplied by the successful Contractor.

The ethical standards of the Public of the Public Officers’ Code of Ethics (Section 74 of the Public Officers Law) provide that no officer or employee of a State agency shall disclose confidential information that he acquires during the course of his official duties except as otherwise required by law.

These standards control the confidentiality of a Bidder’s proposal unless the Department grants a petition for records access in accordance with the Freedom of Information Law.
Request for Exemption from Disclosure

As outlined in Section III.K., public inspection of bid proposals is regulated by the Freedom of Information Law (Article 6 of the New York State Public Officers Law).  The bids are presumptively available for public inspection.  If this would be unacceptable to Bidders, they should apply to the Department for trade secret protection of their bid.

In applying for trade secret protection, it would be unacceptable to indiscriminately categorize the entire proposal as such.

Response Requirements

To obtain trade secret protections, the Bidder must submit with its response, a letter specifically identifying the page number, line or other appropriate designation of the information that is trade secret and explain in detail why such information is a trade secret and would be exempt from disclosure.
